
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, January 29, 2013 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 January 15, 2013 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
    
   Animal Control 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
Auditor 
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000   
Clerk 
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106  
Commissioners 
d. One-Time Wage Payment for Non-Bargaining Full Time Benton County Employees   
e. Letter to US Senate & House of Representatives re US District Court Judge Appointment for 

the Eastern District of Washington 
f. Canvassing Board Appointment 
g. Appointment of M Valdez to the Mid-Columbia Library Board of Trustees   
h. Appointment of L Barrett to the Kiona Irrigation District Board of Directors 
Coroner 
i. Contract w/C Wigren, MD for Autopsy Services 
Facilities 
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 
Fairgrounds 
k. Lease Agreement w/Benton Franklin Fair Association 
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 
n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 
Human Services 
o. Adopting 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness, Phase Two 
p. Appreciation of M Gerber as Administrative Board Member 
q. Appreciation of A Ray as Administrative Board Member 
r. Adoption of Benton County Excessive Force Policy 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
to view items in detail, please click on highlighted area

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
January 29, 2013 
Page 2 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

Juvenile   
s. Contract w/Stephenson Computer Consulting  
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 
u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171   
v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173 
w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 174   
Office of Public Defense 
x. Compensation for Peyman Younesi – 2012 Over Cap Cases 
y. Compensation for Attorney Jan Armstrong – Mediation/Arbitration Services 
z. Professional Services Agreement with Jennifer Johnson  
aa. Professional Services Agreement with Caleb DiPeso 
bb. Professional Services Agreement with Trinity Orosco  
cc. Professional Services Agreement with John Gary Metro 
dd.  Professional Services Agreement with Dennis Hanson  
ee.  Professional Services Agreement with Thomas Brooks  
ff.  Professional Services Agreement with Patrick McBurney 
Parks 
gg. Payment Authorization to Benton REA for Upgrades to Rattlesnake Mt Shooting Facility   
hh. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126 
Personnel 
ii. 2013 Bi-County Non Bargaining Monthly Benefit Contribution 
jj. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000   
kk. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 127  
ll. Appointment of February 2013 Employee of the Month 
mm. Amendment to Resolution 2013-050 Regarding Western States Agency, Inc. 
Public Works 
nn. Authorization to Advertise and Bid for Bituminous Surface Treatment 2013 
oo. Certification of 2013 Road Levy and Revenue 
pp. Diverting Road Tax Levy Funds to Current Expense for Traffic Enforcement Purposes 
qq. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650 
rr. Funding Award for 2013 Crushing & Stockpiling 
ss. Quit Claim Deed for Land Exchange for Piert Road 
tt. Purchase Authorization for Four New Ford Heavy Duty Pickups 
Sheriff  
uu. Payment Authorization to Commercial Tire  
vv. Purchase Authorization from Dooley Enterprises, Inc, San Diego Police Equipment 

Company, Inc. and Surplus Ammo & Arms, LLC 
ww Authorization to Pay Clearwater Collision & Towing  
xx.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 
yy. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 
zz. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000 
aaa Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0126-101, Dept. 000 
Sustainable Development   
bbb Support Letter to Kennewick Irrigation District 
Treasurer 
ccc  Cancelling Taxes for Personal Property Determined As Uncollectible  
 
 

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
January 29, 2013 
Page 3 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

Scheduled Business: 
 
Grant Application for Litter Cleanup Program w/Department of Ecology ~ Commander Law 
 
Gang Task Force Update ~ Sheriff Keane & Sgt. Trevino 
 
Hanford Communities/Hanford Advisory Board Annual Update ~ A Fyall 
 
Tapteal Greenway/Friends of Badger Mountain Presentation ~ A Fyall 
 
Noxious Weed Board Appointments ~ M Wenner 
 
Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Account (Veba) Discussion ~ D Sparks & M Wenner 
 
Review of Benton County Code Chapter 7.16 (Outdoor Concerts) ~ Commissioner Small 
 

  Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update     
 
   Executive Session 
    
   4th Quarter Litigation Update ~ R Brown      
      

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, January 15, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner  James Beaver 
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA 
Ryan Brown; Central Services Manager Randy Reid; District Court Administrator Jacki 
Lahtinen; Clerk Josie Delvin; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Susan Walker, Planning; County 
Engineer Daniel Ford and Sue Schuetze, Public Works; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; 
Auditor Brenda Chilton; Rosie Sparks, Auditor; Charlene Vowels and Skip Gest, Benton County 
Noxious Weed.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of January 8, 2013 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “z”.   
Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Animal Control 

a. Contract w/Vista Veterinary Hospital for Veterinarian Services 
Auditor 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000   
Commissioners 

c. Reappointment of P Johnstone-Jones to the Aging and Long Term Care Board 
d. Reappointment of J Dosch to the Aging and Long Term Care Board   

Facilities 
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110    

Juvenile   
f. Amended Contract w/S Henwood for Indigent Legal Representation  



 - 2 - 

g. 2013 Operations Budget & Facilities Budget Monthly Payments   
h. 2013 – 2014 Operations & Facilities Budget Monthly Payments 
i. Agreement w/M Mendoza for Indigent Legal Representation 
j. Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air for HVAC Services  

Office of Public Defense 
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 
m. Payment Authorization to Armstrong, Klym, Waite, Atwood & Jameson, P.S. Law Firm 

Parks 
n. Payment Authorization to Blueline Equipment Company LLC for Tractor Repair 
o. Payment Authorization to Tire Factory for Tractor Tires  
p. Payment Authorization to Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau 

Personnel 
q. Appointment of Western States Insurance Agency, Inc. as Agent of Record  
r. Termination of the Washington Counties Insurance Pool 
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000  

Prosecuting Attorney   
u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117  
v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0120-101, Dept. 000  

Public Works 
w. Purchase Authorization for Two Backhoes 

Sustainable Development   
x. Reappointment of M Plahuta to the Hanford Advisory Board 
y. Reappointment of L Lockrem to the Hanford Advisory Board 

Treasurer 
z. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 124 

 
Continued Public Hearing on County Road Improvement District #23 – (CRID 23) 
 
Steve Becken asked the Board if they had been contacted by anyone other than staff about this 
issue and if so, what they discussed.   
 
Commissioner Beaver stated that Cecil Kindle gave him some information in a packet that he did 
not read and he forwarded to Public Works.  Also, he received an email but did not read it.  
 
Chairman Small said he also received an email that he did not read.  Additionally, he received a 
phone call from Mayor Donna Noski and he told her they would not discuss the CRID issue.  
Also, he had a phone conversation with George Janecek, CID Commissioner and they did not 
discuss the issue.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said he received packets that he reviewed and he did not attend the first 
public hearing and looked at the packets prior to becoming a county commissioner.  He said he 
received emails but did not read the emails and had not been in contact with anyone.   
 



 - 3 - 

Steve Becken read the staff report dated January 8, 2013 that included information regarding 
benefit and access information for lots requesting to be excluded from the CRID, reverse zonal 
method of assessment, separation into two CRID’s, addition and subtraction of roads, revising 
assessments, and other items brought up by the public.   
 
Mr. Becken stated that RCW 36.88.030 required assessment estimates not exceed a figure equal 
to the increased true and fair market value that the improvement added to the property.  
Additionally, they were not sure what authority the commissioners had to do a special 
assessment and recommended their office work with the PA to determine what authority the 
Commissioners had for special assessments and delay making a decision for two to three weeks.  
 
Commissioner Delvin asked if the issue of fair market value increase to property had come up 
with other CRID’s and Mr. Becken said it had not been brought up before.  Additionally, he 
asked if Atlas Road was extended through to 38th, if it would change the 10% requirement.  Mr. 
Becken said the 10% requirement was still there but he thought they could do that and still stay 
under the 10% based on information received regarding right of way.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said he was bothered by the fact that the issue of assessment and whether 
the Board had any authority just came up.  Additionally, he said that 38th looked like an arterial 
to him and that it would eventually be owned by someone so wanted to know why it wasn’t 
being built by the County and the City.  Mr. Becken said it was privately owned road and 
Commissioner Beaver said he believed it should be a cooperative effort by the city and county to 
get it built.   
 
Mr. Becken said that 38th was not in the Six-Year Road Program as a county road project and 
that would take budget changes.   
 
Chairman Small said first thing first and the County should look at what other counties were 
doing regarding CRID’s and what the legal rights were.  Mr. Becken said there was a website 
they could utilize to make a request to other counties and they usually could get an answer within 
a week.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said he wanted to postpone the public hearing, review the assessments, 
and solve the arterial street problem, which he believed was a responsibility of the government.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to postpone the public hearing.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said after talking to the PA he wanted to abstain from this vote because 
there were letters submitted that asked him to recuse himself because he signed letters in support 
as a State Senator before he was elected as county commissioner.  He said some issues had been 
raised on the legal side exactly where the fairness doctrine came in so he should abstain from the 
vote on the consideration.  Commissioner Beaver said his motion was not for the CRID.  
Commissioner Delvin said he could probably vote on that motion, but wanted to bring up there 
were legal issues raised from people opposed to it.  He said he didn’t think he needed to abstain 
from this motion just to reconsider or delay it.   
 



 - 4 - 

Commissioner Beaver said he believed the Board needed to do some more homework and 
thought this project could work if they involved themselves. 
 
The motion was clarified to state it was to continue the public hearing to February 5, 2013 at 
9:00 a.m.     
 
Commissioner Delvin asked if they could get a ballpark figure on what it would cost for the 
County to build 38th and Mr. Becken said he would provide that.  
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:35 a.m.  
 
Non-Bargaining  One-Time Wage  Adjustment 
 
David Sparks asked the Board for approval to prepare a resolution for a one-time payment to the 
non-bargs in lieu of a cost of living adjustment.  He said his concern going forward was 
increasing costs to future budgets, however, there was an opportunity to offer a one-time 
payment in lieu of a cost of living adjustment.  He said they finished negotiations with one union 
and they returned a letter accepting the proposal.  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to authorize Mr. Sparks to prepare a resolution for the 
Board’s consideration.  
 
Commissioner Delvin asked about the approximate cost and where the money would come from.  
Mr. Sparks said they would look at a one-time cost out of cash reserves since there was some 
money carry forward from prior years and the one-time payment would not increase future costs.   
Commissioner Delvin said he wanted to clarify that elected officials did not get that one-time 
payment and Mr. Sparks confirmed that was true.  He said there were nine non-bargaining 
positions that were not on the salary schedule but were tied to a COLA or their elected official 
and asked that those be included in the one-time payment.  He said this was along the lines of 
what they were looking at for the unions as well and one union had approved it and another was 
going to vote.  
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Delvin said he was still fulfilling duties as State Senator.  He indicated that 
Commissioner Beaver went to a water meeting for him and passed along that information and 
Commissioner Small went to Transit for him.  Additionally, Olympia went off to a good start and 
the committees were all set and he would be coming back and forth until the end of January.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said he attended the Council of Governments; met with Dan McDaniels at 
the Fair Association; HAIEFIC loan review meeting; water meeting in Yakima; attended the 
Blue Ribbon Commission at the City of Kennewick; and toured the CRID.  Commissioner 



 - 5 - 

Delvin said he took that tour as well.  Commissioner Beaver said he would also be attending his 
first Fairgrounds Improvement Board meeting on Thursday. 
 
Chairman Small said he attended a couple of board meetings as well.  He said he attended the 
Ben-Franklin Transit and they discussed wanting additional representation for the annual 
meeting in D.C. around the second week in March and asked Commissioner Delvin to think 
about that.  He said also completed the CRID tour on Thursday.  Additionally, he requested 
approval to attend the legislative Tri City Visitor & Convention Bureau meeting in Olympia and 
the Board agreed. Commissioner Delvin said he would be attending as well and there was no 
objection noted.  
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 01/04/2013 
Warrant #: 235092-235193 
Direct Deposit #: 80378-80981 
Total all funds: $2,125,143.85 
 
Check Date:  01/04/2013 
Warrant #: 72514-72538 
Taxes #: 10113011-10113013 
Total all funds: $2,051,585.70 
 
Check Date:  01/11/2013 
Warrant #: 72786-72944 
Procurement Cards #113 
Total all funds: $910,506.02 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2013-034: Contract w/Vista Veterinary Hospital for Veterinarian Services 
2013-035: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000   
2013-036: Reappointment of P Johnstone-Jones to the Aging and Long Term Care Board 
2013-037: Reappointment of J Dosch to the Aging and Long Term Care Board   
2013-038: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110    
2013-039: Amended Contract w/S Henwood for Indigent Legal Representation  
2013-040: 2013 Operations Budget & Facilities Budget Monthly Payments   
2013-041: 2013 – 2014 Operations & Facilities Budget Monthly Payments 
2013-042: Agreement w/M Mendoza for Indigent Legal Representation 
2013-043: Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air for HVAC Services  
2013-044: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 
2013-045: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 
2013-046: Payment Authorization to Armstrong, Klym, Waite, Atwood & Jameson, P.S. 

Law Firm 



 - 6 - 

2013-047: Payment Authorization to Blueline Equipment Company LLC for Tractor Repair 
2013-048: Payment Authorization to Tire Factory for Tractor Tires  
2013-049: Payment Authorization to Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau 
2013-050: Appointment of Western States Insurance Agency, Inc. as Agent of Record  
2013-051: Termination of the Washington Counties Insurance Pool 
2013-052: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 
2013-053: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000  
2013-054: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117  
2013-055: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0120-101, Dept. 000  
2013-056: Purchase Authorization for Two Backhoes 
2013-057: Reappointment of M Plahuta to the Hanford Advisory Board 
2013-058: Reappointment of L Lockrem to the Hanford Advisory Board 
2013-059: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 124 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting recessed until 1:30 p.m. for 
Noxious Weed Board interviews. 
 
Other Business – Travel Authorization  
 
David Sparks said that Commissioner Delvin wanted to attend the NACo conference the first 
part of March and wanted permission to schedule that trip.  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve.  Chairman Small seconded and upon vote, 
the motion carried. 
 
Noxious Weed Board Interviews 
 
Julie Trumble 
 

1. Why do you want to be on the Board and do you have any commitments or restrictions 
that would prevent you from attending and participating in the meetings?  

 
Ms. Trumble said she was a rancher and farmer and battled noxious weeds in her yard and 
pasture and was very familiar with its problems.  She said the commitment to attend meetings 
would depend on when they were held because she was involved in other community activities.   

 
Charlene Vowels said the meetings were was once a month and the Board was the general 
overseer of the department and would authorize any vouchers to be paid and the general program 
and how to spend the money and the operations was run by the employees. 

 
Ms. Trumble indicated she could commit to that schedule.  

 
2. What experiences have you had that would benefit your performance in the Board’s 

future?   
 

Ms. Trumble said she had been on several boards in the past for other organizations. 



 - 7 - 

3. What direction do you feel is best for the future of the Board?  In five years? In ten 
years? Why do you recommend this direction? 

 
She said she couldn’t answer that because she didn’t know where they were going and didn’t 
know about future problems, but she had been reading up to see what they were currently doing.   
 
Ms. Vowels said this would be a brand new board and so far they had been a non-enforcement 
agency and they hadn’t needed the enforcement part.  
 
Chairman Small said he was interested in seeing a new creative board and wanted them to review 
what other counties were doing and raise the bar.   
 
Melina Wenner, via videoconference said it should be noted that Ms. Trumble applied for 
Position 4 but it appeared she was actually in Position 3.  It was stated the Board would have to 
research the district boundaries and petition signatures before a final decision was made.  
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 1:50 p.m. 
 
Johan Curtiss  
 

1. Why do you want to be on the Board and do you have any commitments or restrictions 
that would prevent you from attending and participating in the meetings?  

 
She said that agriculture was a very important component of the community and weeds had an 
economic impact to our community.  She said she had a side job working with small farms on 
these issues and to also make sure they were good stewards.  She said she didn’t know about any 
restrictions because she didn’t know when the meetings were. She was told they were currently 
the 3rd Tuesday but that could be changed depending on the new board.  She said she served on 
the West Richland Planning Commission, but her schedule was flexible.   
 

2. What experiences have you had that would benefit your performance in the Board’s 
future?   

 
She said she previously served on the West Richland Chamber Board, the Planning Commission, 
the Economic Board for West Richland and education boards so she had leadership experience.   
 

3. What direction do you feel is best for the future of the Board?  In five years? In ten 
years? Why do you recommend this direction? 

 
She said it was her understanding the Board had some public outreach to community to educate 
landowners and not to be the enforcer, but to engage people about what was happening.  She said 
as there was more transportation in out and of the community, they needed to make sure 
everyone understood the importance of taking care of their property.  Also, it was important the 
organic farmers were not competing with large farmers and pesticides and to do proactive weed 
control so there wouldn’t be conflicts between the two types of growers.   
 



 - 8 - 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 2:30 p.m.  
 
Richard Roos 
 

1. Why do you want to be on the Board and do you have any commitments or restrictions 
that would prevent you from attending and participating in the meetings?  

 
He said he wanted to be on the Board because noxious weeds were tremendously destructive and 
devastating to native ecology and he wanted to keep them out of Benton County.  He said he had 
no restrictions as far as meeting on the board.  

 
2. What experiences have you had that would benefit your performance in the Board’s 

future?   
 

He said he managed the noxious weed control board at Hanford and was an ecologist so he 
understood plants and how to manage them 
 

3. What direction do you feel is best for the future of the Board?  In five years? In ten 
years? Why do you recommend this direction? 

 
He said they needed to plan carefully and he didn’t know if there was a written plan about what 
to do with noxious weeds in Benton County so they could work proactively.  He indicated it was 
a good program but thought it could be improved with some careful planning.  He said if they 
knew what was there, with a plan in place for that species they could lay out a strategy for years 
down the road.   

 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 3:08 p.m.  
 
Steven Link  
 

1. Why do you want to be on the Board and do you have any commitments or restrictions 
that would prevent you from attending and participating in the meetings?  

 
He said he was a professional botanist and studied plants in all forms and had done so in this area 
since 1985.  He said he had no problem making the board meetings.   

 
1. What experiences have you had that would benefit your performance in the Board’s 

future?   
 

He indicated his experience was broader in the public sphere and he would take a more vigorous 
position with respect to the board.  He said he wrote columns for the Herald on this specific 
subject, had experience at the Hanford site, represented the Umatilla Indians and his role was to 
advise on how the site should be managed or restored.  Additionally, he helped raise funds for 
the weed board.   

 



 - 9 - 

2. What direction do you feel is best for the future of the Board?  In five years? In ten 
years? Why do you recommend this direction? 

 
He stated the direction for the board for the immediate should be a little more hands-on with the 
workers.  He felt the past manager might have gotten a little too relaxed and so wanted to be 
more involved so they understood what was happening.  He said that beyond the first five years, 
as the economy grew, funding might need to be increased.  He said he was very connected with 
the political arena here in the County and didn’t feel that fundraising or changes in assessment 
were handled correctly in the past.   
 
Chairman Small said he was not in favor of a 39% assessment increase and was very excited to 
hear he wanted to be proactive and involved.   
 
Mr. Link said that with only three employees and no manager it was very important to take an 
active role.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 3:30 p.m.  
 
Charlene Vowels let the Board know that four out of the five board members had to be in the 
production of agriculture.  
 
Hermann Thoennissen 

 
1. Why do you want to be on the Board and do you have any commitments or restrictions 

that would prevent you from attending and participating in the meetings?  
 
Mr. Thoennissen said he had been in agriculture for 33 years and lived in Benton County for 20 
years.  He said that over the years he had stepped down from his responsibility in the industry 
but they all had to take responsibility.  He said the meeting schedule should work but he travelled 
to China twice a year.   

 
2. What experiences have you had that would benefit your performance in the Board’s 

future?   
 

He said he had 33 years in agriculture, mostly tree fruits and worked for Ag Northwest for 15 
years.  He said he had a strong agriculture background with a Master’s Degree in Horticulture.   
 

3. What direction do you feel is best for the future of the Board?  In five years? In ten 
years? Why do you recommend this direction? 

 
He stated that as farmer he enjoyed working with the Board because it was a good resource and 
connection to the County and dealing with noxious weeds was a never ending battle. He said he 
believed the future was in developing partners with commodity groups and identifying groups to 
partner with to combat the weeds.  He said it could start in the schools to educate as well.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 3:45 p.m. 



 - 10 - 

David Berry  
 

1. Why do you want to be on the Board and do you have any commitments or restrictions 
that would prevent you from attending and participating in the meetings?  

 
He said he was a long-time resident and believed a fresh face would assist in identifying issues.  
He stated he had no conflicts to attend the meetings.   
 

2. What experiences have you had that would benefit your performance in the Board’s 
future?   

 
He said he worked for Franklin County Noxious Weed board and was very familiar with the 
structure and protocol of the Board.  He dealt with weed control on his own farm and was 
previously a project coordinator in Idaho.  He said that most of the time involved weed control 
and new practices. 
 

3. What direction do you feel is best for the future of the Board?  In five years? In ten 
years? Why do you recommend this direction? 

 
Mr. Berry said there were weed issues in the County that needed to be addressed and being 
community friendly was important, as well as increasing visibility to the public.  He said he had 
a lot of experience that could be beneficial to help format a little better program that was more 
visible from the bottom up.  He wanted the Board to reach out and fulfill obligations to the 
community before it went to the Commissioners.  
 
The Board indicated a decision would be made in approximately two weeks.  
 
The Board discussed the different positions with Melina Wenner and Lexi Wingfield and Ms. 
Wingfield said they would need to continue to recruit Districts 2 and 4. She confirmed the 
following applicants were in these positions: 
 
Julie Trumble – Position 3 
Johan Curtiss – Position 5 
Richard Roos – Position 3 
Steve Link – Position 5 
Hermann Thoennissen – Position 3 
David Berry – Position 3 
Cathleen Williams – Position 1 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he wanted to make a recommendation that Cathleen Williams be 
approved for Position 1.  He said he read her resume and that she also fulfilled the agriculture 
requirement. 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he also wanted to recommend Johan Curtiss for Position 5. 
 



 - 11 - 

Chairman Small said he wanted to take a look at David Berry for Position 3; he liked that he 
talked about being visible.  He said he also liked Hermann Thoennissen for Position 3. 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he could also go with David Berry for Position 3.   
 
The Board agreed to provide three names for recommendations to the full board once 
Commissioner Delvin returned and asked Personnel Department to verify they were eligible in 
these districts.  Additionally, Personnel would advertise for the open positions.   
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 4:03 
p.m. 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: K. Mercer

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 137.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 2011-

2012 funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: Dept. TRANSFER TO: Dept. 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

521.230 3106 Operating Supplies $487 521.230 5119 EDC 800 MHZ User Fees $487

TOTAL $487 TOTAL $487

Explanation:

Prepared by: Keith Mercer Date:  16-Jan-2013

Approved � Denied � Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

During the 2013-2014 budget preparation, it was discovered that the 800 MHZ Usage fee for Animal Control's four radios were budgeted and paid for by
the Sheriff's Office. This has been corrected in the 2013-2014 budget and the invoices were supposed to be transferred to Animal Control starting January
1, 2013. However, BCES updated their system and sent Animal Control the 2012 fourth quarter invoice. Transferring 2011-2012 appropriations in order to
pay for Animal Control's 2012 fourth quarter 800 MHZ Usage fee (4 radios). 

Animal Control

Current Expense

137

0000-101











EXHIBIT A                         BENTON COUNTY   RESOLUTION No.____________ 
                                             LINE ITEM TRANSFERS  
 

DEPARTMENT:__SUPERIOR COURT CLERK___                       DEPARTMENT NO.:       106              

FUND NAME:    CURRENT EXPENSE                       FUND NO.:                     0000-101     

 

TRANSFER FROM:        TRANSFER TO: 
 
Base 
Sub  
(6 digit) 

 
Line 
Item 
(4 digit) 

 
LINE ITEM NAME 

 
AMOUNT 

 
Base Sub  
(6 digit) 

 
Line 
Item 
(4 digit) 

 
LINE ITEM NAME 

 
AMOUNT 

512.300 4301 Travel $1,000.00 512.300 4504 Rentals-Small 
Equipment 

$1,000.00 

        

        

        

 
Prepared by:      Josie Delvin                                                Date:     January 10, 2013                                       

Approved       
Denied                                             

 

_______________________________________________  Date:__________________                                     
          Chairman 

_______________________________________________ 
                                                       Chairman Pro Tem 
_______________________________________________ 
                                                                      Member 



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF A ONE-TIME WAGE PAYMENT FOR YEAR 2013 FOR NON-
BARGAINING FULL-TIME BENTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES  
 
WHEREAS, in 2012 the Board of Benton County Commissioners determined during the 2013-
2014 budget process that due to projected budget deficits and in order to maintain current 
staffing levels, that it would not be able to offer a cost of living adjustment or other wage scale 
adjustment for 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 2012 the Board of Benton County Commissioners found and determined it was 
in the best interest of Benton County for future budgeting purposes to consider deferred 
compensation in the form of a one-time payment to Benton County employees in lieu of a 2013 
wage scale increase but that employees working for both Benton and Franklin Counties not be 
eligible because of Franklin County’s inability to assist in any such payment; and  
 
WHEREAS, certain employees, per resolutions 08-781, 08-916, 11-204, and 2012-436, are not 
on the Benton County non-bargaining salary wage scale; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Benton County Commissioners that it has 
agreed to provide a one-time payment in lieu of a 2013 wage scale increase based on wages 
earned February 1, 2013 through May 31, 2013, at the rate of 7.5% of compensation earned 
during that period, calculated at an annual percentage rate of 2.5%; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that to be eligible for the one-time payment, the employee 
must be on the Benton County payroll as of May 31, 2013, and be a Benton County non-
bargaining, salary wage scale, full-time employee of only Benton County and not be a county 
elected official; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that employees whose pay is outlined in resolutions 08-781, 
08-916, 11-204, and 2012-436 shall be eligible for the one-time additional payment in lieu of a 
permanent pay increase; and  
 



cc:  All Departments  D. Sparks 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such one-time payment is scheduled to be made not later 
than June 30, 2013, and will be subject to all applicable payroll deductions and processed based 
on employee payroll information on file with payroll for the June 5, 2013 payroll.   
 
 
Dated this ____ day of January, 2013 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: _________________________________     Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 01/29/2013  
Subject: Line Item 

Transfer – 
Facilities (Jail) 

Prepared by:       C. McKenzie        
Reviewed by: Keith Mercer 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  X   
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            X       
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
A line item transfer in the amount of $6,760.00 is needed to bring the line items current in Dept. 120 
(Facilities Section - Jail) in accordance with Board policy to pay for utilities and repairs/maintenance from the 
2011-2012 budget.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the resolution authorizing the line item transfer.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
2011-2012 budget.  
$6,760.00 
Fund – Current Expense, Dept. 120 (Facilities Section) 
No supplement needed.  
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
539-500 3135 Supplies $6,760 539-500 4701 Utilities $3,335

539-500 4804 Repair/Maint. Other $3,425

TOTAL $6,760 TOTAL $6,760
Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  14-Jan-2013

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

A line item transfer is needed bring the 2011-2012 budget in compliance with "line item budgeting" to pay for utilities and repairs.  This is for the physical 
environment section (Facilities) in Dept. 120.

Sheriff Custody

Current Expense

120

0000-101



cc: Fair Association, Fairgrounds, PA (R. Ozuna); Auditor; Treasurer 
original:  File  SmithKelty 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

         
Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 

 Clerk of the Board      Washington 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

BENTON COUNTY AND THE BENTON-FRANKLIN FAIR ASSOCIATION: 

RELATING TO REAL PROPERTY PARCELS 1-0880-200-0009-000; 1-0880-200-

0004-000; AND 1-0880-300-0001-000 LOCATED AT THE BENTON COUNTY 

FAIRGROUNDS 

 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby 

approves and agrees to the attached lease agreement between Benton County and the 

Benton-Franklin Fair Association relating to real property parcels 1-0880-200-0009-000; 

1-0880-200-0004-000; and 1-0880-300-0001-000 located at the Benton County 

Fairgrounds. 



BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS 
1500 South Oak Street, Bldg #20 

Kennewick, WA  99337 

(509) 222-3751 

 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
 

TODAY’S DATE: 01/29/2013 

 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT NUMBER:  

 

 

EVENT DATE(S): 02/01/2013 – 07/31/2013 

 

 

NUMBER OF DAYS: N/A 

 

 

BUILDING(S) / AREA: Sundowns Building, race track, horse barns, 4-H arena, and RV 

parking lot 

 

 

LESSEE: Benton-Franklin Fair Association 

 

 

MAILING ADDRESS: 1500 South Oak, Kennewick, WA  99337 

 

 

CONTACT: Dan McDaniels 

 

HOME PHONE: N/A    WORK PHONE: 509-222-3749 

CELLULAR PHONE: 509-727-1464 

 

 

TIME OF THE EVENT: N/A 

 

 

TYPE OF EVENT: Class C Horse Racing, State Licensed Pari-mutuel Horse Racing and 

other Equine Training and Events 

 

 

ESTIMATED ATTENDANCE: up to 5,000 

 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 1/22/13 
Subject: line item transfer 
Prepared by:       J. Donley  
Reviewed by:      K. Mercer 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
Transfer needed to comply with 2012 line item budgeting as approved by resolution 2012-622 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve line item transfer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Transferring funds from 575.400.4701 Utilities to 575.400.4703 Waste Disposal. No supplement required.    
 
MOTION 
 
 
 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 "

A
"

D
ep

t N
am

e:
D

ep
t N

br
:

F
un

d 
N

am
e:

F
un

d 
N

br
:

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

 F
R

O
M

:
T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 T

O
:

B
A

S
E

 S
U

B
LI

N
E

 IT
E

M
LI

N
E

 IT
E

M
 N

A
M

E
A

M
O

U
N

T
B

A
S

E
 S

U
B

LI
N

E
 IT

E
M

LI
N

E
 IT

E
M

 N
A

M
E

A
M

O
U

N
T

(6
 d

ig
it)

(4
 d

ig
it)

(6
 d

ig
it)

(4
 d

ig
it)

57
5.

40
0

47
01

U
til

iti
es

$3
62

57
5.

40
0

47
03

W
as

te
 D

is
po

sa
l

$3
62

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
O

T
A

L
$3

62
T

O
T

A
L

$3
62

E
xp

la
na

tio
n:

P
re

pa
re

d 
by

:
Jo

hn
 D

on
le

y,
 O

ff
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
D

at
e:

  
11

-J
an

-2
01

3

A
pp

ro
ve

d
�

D
en

ie
d

�
D

at
e:

  

C
ha

irm
an

M
em

be
r

M
em

be
r

B
E

N
T

O
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 L
IN

E
 IT

E
M

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 2

01
2 

lin
e 

ite
m

 b
ud

ge
tin

g 
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

20
12

-6
22

B
en

to
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

F
ai

rg
ro

un
ds

F
ai

rg
ro

un
ds

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
B

ud
ge

t F
un

d

00
0

#0
12

4-
10

1



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

< >

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

FAIRGROUNDS OPERATING BUDGET FUND FUND NUMBER #0124-101, 

DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.









 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 1/15/13 
Subject: line item transfer 
Prepared by:       J. Donley  
Reviewed by:      K. Mercer 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
A new groundskeeper was hired and the elimination of the Senior Fair Maintenance Worker position 
required that funds be redistributed to different positions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve line item transfer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Transferring funds from 575.400.1556 Senior Fair Maintenance Worker to 575.400.1555 Groundskeeper 
and 575.400.1551 Fairgrounds Office Manager. No supplement required.    
 
MOTION 
 
 
 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

< >

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

FAIRGROUNDS OPERATING BUDGET FUND FUND NUMBER #0124-101, 

DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: TRANSFER TO:

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

575.400 1556 Senior Fair Maintenance Worker $69,792 575.400 1555 Groundskeeper $69,792

575.400 1556 Senior Fair Maintenance Worker $8,604 575.400 1551 Office Manager $8,604

TOTAL $78,396 TOTAL $78,396

Explanation:

Prepared by: John Donley,  Office  Manager. Date:  08-Jan-2013

Approved � Denied � Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER (2013-2014)

A new groundskeeper was hired and the elimination of the Senior Fair Maintenance Worker position required that funds be redistributed to different 
positions. 

Benton County Fairgrounds

Fairgrounds Operating Budget Fund

000

#0124-101















































          EXHIBIT A

LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Department: Juvenile Center Department No: 174

Fund Name: Juvenile - Grant - Reimbursement Fund: 0115101

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) NAME (6 digit) (4 digit) NAME

527.400 1667 Counselor II $8,292 527.400 1713 Counselor II $8,292

527.109 4140 FBG - Path (CWCMH) $97,164 527.400 1140 Counselor II $97,164

Totals $105,456 Total $105,456

EXPLANATION:

Prepared by Jennifer Bowe Date 11/15/2012

Approved Denied Date

Chairman

Member

Member

Line item transfer needed to appropriate dollars to the correct line item due to staff turnover (line item 1713).  In addition, a line item transfer is necessary to correct an 

entry error during budget preparation.  Appropriated dollars were inadvertetnly allocated to line item 527.109.4140 and should have been keyed to 527.400.1140,  

 



























































 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 01/29/2013  
Subject: Line Item 

Transfer – Parks 
Prepared by:       C. McKenzie        
Reviewed by: Keith Mercer 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  X   
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            X       
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
A line item transfer in the amount of $300.00 is needed to bring the Parks line items current in accordance 
with Board policy to pay for vehicle fuel from the 2011-2012 budget.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the resolution authorizing the line item transfer.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
2011-2012 budget 
$300.00 
Fund – Current Expense, Dept. 126  
No supplement needed.  
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
576-690 3121 Construction Materails $300 576-690 3103 Oil & Lubricants $300

TOTAL $300 TOTAL $300
Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  14-Jan-2013

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

This line item transfer is needed to brng the 2011-2012 budget in compliance with "line item budgeting' to pay for vehicle fuel.  

Parks

Current Expense

126

0000-101




































































































































	Agenda Minutes 011513
	Approval of Minutes
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	CA - Animal Control a
	CA - Auditor b
	CA - Clerk c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Commissioners e
	CA - Commissioners f
	CA - Commissioners g
	CA - Commissioners h
	CA - Coroner i
	CA - Facilities j
	Agenda action sheet- Fac. -Jail - LIT - 012913
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION

	Line Item Transfer- Jail-Facilities  - 012913
	Form


	CA - Fairgrounds k
	CA - Fairgrounds l
	CA - Fairgrounds m
	CA - Fairgrounds n
	CA - Human Service p
	CA - Human Service q
	CA - Human Services o
	CA - Human Services r
	CA - Juvenile s
	CA - Juvenile t
	CA - Juvenile u
	CA - Juvenile v
	CA - Juvenile w
	CA - OPD aa
	CA - OPD bb
	CA - OPD cc
	CA - OPD dd
	CA - OPD ee
	CA - OPD ff
	CA - OPD x
	CA - OPD y
	CA - OPD z
	CA - Parks gg
	CA - Parks hh
	Agenda action sheet- Parks - LIT -  012913
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION

	Line Item Transfer- Parks - 012913
	Form


	CA - Personnel ii
	CA - Personnel jj
	CA - Personnel kk
	CA - Personnel ll
	CA - Personnel mm
	CA - Public Works nn
	CA - Public Works oo
	CA - Public Works pp
	CA - Public Works qq
	CA - Public Works rr
	CA - Public Works ss
	CA - Public Works tt
	CA - Sheriff aaa
	CA - Sheriff uu
	CA - Sheriff vv
	CA - Sheriff ww
	CA - Sheriff xx
	CA - Sheriff yy
	CA - Sheriff zz
	CA - Sustainable Dev bbb
	CA - Treasurer ccc
	Timed - BC Code 7.16
	Timed - Dept of Ecology Grant
	Timed - Friends of Badger Mt
	Timed - Veba



